Public Document Pack

Meeting of:
Date:
Time:
Venue:

Health, Schools and Care Overview and
Scrutiny Committee
Thursday, 18th February, 2021
6.00 pm.
Zoom

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.
Item
No.
1

AGENDA

Page No

Apologies
To receive any apologies for absence.

2

Declarations of Interest
Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.

3

Urgent Items of Business
To determine whether there are any additional items of business
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency.

4

Minutes

3-5

To consider the Minutes of the Meeting of the Health, Schools and
Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee, held on 19th November 2020.
5

1st & 2nd Quarter Social Care Complaints

6 - 26

To consider social care related complaints received in the first two
quarters of 2020/2021 (April – September 2020).
6

Adult, Children & Public Health Directorate Plans 2020-21:
Quarter 3 Performance Update

27 - 54

To consider the performance of the Adults, Children’s and Public
Health Directorate in the third quarter 2020/2021 (October December)
7

Exclusion of Press and Public
To consider that the press and public be excluded from the remaining
part of the meeting pursuant to Section 100(A)4 of the Local
Government Act 1972 on the grounds that discussions may involve the
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the provisions of
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 and public
interest would not be served in publishing the information.

8

Rochdale Academy SEN school
To consider the attached report of the Director of Children’s Services

Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee Members
Councillor Sultan Ali
Councillor Patricia Mary Dale
Councillor Irene Davidson
Councillor Ray Dutton (Chair)
Councillor James Gartside
Councillor John Hartley
Councillor Rachel Massey
Councillor Alan McCarthy
Mr John McGrath (Lay Member)
Councillor Susan Smith
Councillor Patricia Sullivan (Vice Chair)
For more information about this meeting, please contact:Peter Thompson
Committee Services
Rochdale Borough Council
Floor 2 – Number One Riverside
Smith Street
Rochdale
OL16 1XU
Telephoe – 01706 924715
E-mail – peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk

55 - 59

Agenda
ItemPack
4
Public
Document
HEALTH, SCHOOLS AND CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE
MINUTES OF MEETING
Thursday, 19 November 2020
PRESENT: Councillors Dutton (in the Chair); Councillors Sultan Ali, Dale,
Davidson, Gartside, Hartley, Massey and Sullivan
OFFICERS: Nazam Suleman (Resources Directorate), Helen Heaton (Adult
and Children Services Directorate), Amanda Clarke (Adult Care and Children
Services Directorate), Dr Fay Davies (Children Services Directorate), Julia
Hassall (Children Services Directorate), Steve Blezard (Adult Care
Directorate)
ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: Kate Jones (Healthwatch Rochdale)
42

APOLOGIES
Apologies for absence were received from Cllr McCarthy and Mr John
McGrath (Co-opted member).

43

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Resolved that the following declarations of interest be noted:
a. Councillor Hartley declared a personal interest in the Minute item 49
(Littleborough Primary School Project).

44

URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS
There were no urgent items of business.

45

ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS
There were no items for exclusion of public and press.

46

MINUTES
RESOLVED
That the Minutes held on the 21st September be approved as a correct record.

47

ROCHDALE BOROUGH SAFEGUARDING BOARD'S ANNUAL REPORT
2019/2020
The Committee scrutinised the Annual report for 2019/20 from the Rochdale
Borough Safeguarding Children’s Board and from the Rochdale Borough
Safeguarding Adults Board. The report provided details about current needs in
the Borough, the availability, quality and effectiveness of services to respond
to that need, and on the work of the two Boards themselves.
The Independent Chair of the Boards set out the challenges from 2019/20
which will continue throughout 2020/21, including widening the use of
technology to support multi agency work, and improving engagement with

Page 3

stakeholders in relation to: financial abuse of vulnerable adults, Child Sexual
Exploitation’ Domestic abuse and Dementia abuse
The report reflected on the information about agency performance derived
from data collection and analysis, audits and case reviews. Many of the
performance measures used scored in the range that was seen as reflecting
good practice. The audits and reviews continue to highlight some areas still
requiring practice improvement.
The Independent Chair updated the Committee that the Board and
Partnership have exceptionally met targets during the Pandemic and the team
have managed well with the additional demand. Next year’s report will include
more detail of Covid-19.
Members sought clarity on how well agencies have responded to the
challenges set in 2019/20 and the risks incorporated within the challenges for
2020/21.
Resolved:
That the Rochdale Borough Safeguarding Boards Annual Report 2019/20
(Adults and Children) be commended.
48

COVID-19 RESIDENTS SURVEY AND FOCUS GROUP REPORT 2020
The Committee scrutinised a report that had been prepared by Healthwatch
Rochdale, who had carried out a survey in partnership with the Council, to
understand how the Borough’s residents were coping with the Pandemic and
how the problems faced could be made easier with the support of public
sector services and the wider community.
The survey ran from 22nd May to 30th June 2020. The survey was mostly
multiple-choice questions with some free text boxes to gather general views
about the impact of the pandemic on health and wellbeing and experience of
health and care services. A total of 673 residents had completed the survey.
In September, Heathwatch Rochdale ran 17 focus groups to allow residents to
share their individual experience. From these focus groups 37 responses
were collected and analysed.
The survey outlined statistics on the support received during the pandemic,
information and advice, access to local information, mental and physical
wellbeing, what worked well for residents and what could be improved.
The recommendations from the report had been presented to external
partners at the Rochdale’s Local Care Organisation, and the Our Rochdale
Board Meeting. These recommendations were also to be discussed at
Healthwatch Rochdale’s Advisory Group meeting later in November 2020
where further escalation could evolve.
Resolved:
That the report be noted.

Page 4

49

LITTLEBOROUGH PRIMARY SCHOOL PROJECT
The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of Children Services, which
provided details of the new build project at Littleborough Primary School
funded by the department of education.
The Council was awaiting an announcement from the Department for
Education (DfE) regarding the Government Spending Review which is
expected to be made on 25th November 2020. The DfE were looking for
“shovel ready” construction projects that could be delivered immediately. To
this end the Council had been working closely with the DfE team drawing up
options for a Littleborough Primary School re-build project. In the event that
the project was to be funded as part of the Spending Review, the Council
would be required make a decision on the Littleborough Children’s Centre
building which fell within the potential new school’s footprint.
Resolved:
1. That the report be noted
2. The Cabinet to requested to approve the recommendations, detailed in
the submitted report, when they are scheduled to consider this matter,
on 1st December 2020

50

ADULT, CHILDREN & PUBLIC HEALTH DIRECTORATE PLANS 2020-21
QUARTER 2 PERFORMANCE UPDATE
The Committee scrutinised a report detailing progress during the second
quarter 2020/2021 (1st July – 30th September) towards the achievement of
the targets contained in the Adult Care Directorate Plan 2020/2021, Children’s
Services Directorate Plan 2020/2021 and Public Health Directorate Plan
2020/2021.
Resolved:
1. That the Committee notes and welcomes the report
2. The Committee commends the three Directorates for the work they
have undertaken in difficult circumstances during the ongoing Covid-19
pandemic.

Page 5

Agenda Item 5

Report to Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Date of Meeting

18th February2021

Portfolio

Cabinet Member for
Social Care and Ageing
Well, Cabinet Member for
Getting A Good Start

Report Author
Public/Private Document

Carolyn Whitham
Public

1st & 2nd Quarter Social Care Complaints
Executive Summary
1.

The report provides Members with a summary of Adult and Children’s Social
Care complaints and compliments received during the first half of 2020/21.
Recommendation

2.

It is recommended that Members of the Committee consider and scrutinise
the information contained in the report and assess whether further
information or explanation is required regarding any of the issues raised in
the report.
Reason for Recommendation

3.

Part of the Council’s performance management process is to ensure the
Authority’s ambition to continuously improve services is realised, and actions
or decisions may need to be taken to maintain improvement.
Key Points for Consideration

Page 6

4.

Appendix 1 to the report provides a brief commentary relating to complaints
dealt with under the relevant complaints procedure by Adult Social Care and
Children’s Social Care Services during the 1st and 2nd quarters of 2020/21.
Appendix 1 also includes examples of how an individual complaint has been
dealt with from receipt to resolution as requested by Members at a previous
Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting.
Appendix 2 provides details of complaints in graph form. The format of the
report includes information on trends, and the graphs display trend analysis
for each quarter in the reporting period.
Adult Social Care complaint figures will also include details of any
complaints regarding financial assessments received during the reporting
period. This is a function carried out by the Revenues and Benefits Service.
The Customer Feedback Team are working with services to improve the
quality of information recorded, and to ensure lessons are being learnt from
complaints and action taken is recorded and reported.
To improve complaints monitoring, the Customer Feedback Team also
provides weekly status reports to Assistant Directors to enable closer
monitoring of current complaints.
It should be noted that despite the additional pressures on services due to
the impact of the Covid19 pandemic, both Adult Social Care and Children’s
Social Care services have continued to accept new complaints and respond
to the majority of complaints within timescale.
Alternatives Considered
None. Information has been compiled from the complaints recording system
which is used to record complaints and compliments received by social care
services.
Costs and Budget Summary

5.

None of the complaints dealt with in this reporting period had financial
implications.
Complaints considered at stage two or stage three of the Children’s Social
Care complaints procedure have financial implications due to the statutory
requirement to appoint an external Independent Person and in some cases
an external Investigating Officer at stage two, and three independent people
to sit on a Review Panel at stage three. All costs associated with Children’s
Social Care complaints incurred throughout the year are included in the
Children’s Social Care Annual Complaints Report.
Risk and Policy Implications

Page 7

6.

There are no specific risk issues for Members to consider arising from this
report.
Complainants have the opportunity to refer their complaint to the Local
Government & Social Care Ombudsman for up to twelve months from
completion of the Council’s complaints process; therefore there is a risk that
the outcome of a future Ombudsman investigation into a complaint may result
in a recommended financial remedy. Complaints considered by the
Ombudsman are reported to Overview and Scrutiny Committee annually on
receipt of the Ombudsman’s annual report.
Consultation

7.

Not applicable.

Background Papers

Place of Inspection

8.

None.

Here you should detail any
background papers –

For Further Information Contact:

Carolyn Whitham, Tel: 01706 923508,
carolyn.whitham@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 8

Appendix 1

Complaint Statistics
Adult Social Care
In June 2007 the Department of Health provided a set of proposals to unify and
reform the current arrangements for making complaints across Health and Adult
Social Care; ‘Making Experiences Count.’ As well as fulfilling the commitment in 'Our
Health, Our Care, Our Say', it proposed a radical new approach to complaints
handling which is more flexible and supports organisational learning.
The formalised guidance for the new arrangements was published on 25 February
2009; ‘Listening, Responding, Improving’ and the Regulations were laid before
Parliament on 27 February 2009 for councils and health organisations to implement
from 1 April 2009.
These Regulations enshrine a duty to co-operate with health partners in relation to
complaints that cut across Health and Social Care Services.
The Council introduced a joint complaints process for dealing with Health and Adult
social care complaints from 1 April 2009. It relates to concerns received from this
date onwards and is in line with the Making Experiences Count initiative.
Where a complaint is received about Adult Social Care Services functions or functions
of any party to the Joint Protocol (i.e. Health Partners) the organisation which
receives the complaint handles the co-ordination of the complaint.
The process for dealing with Adult Social Care complaints is a one stage process. If
the complainant remains dissatisfied with the outcome of their complaint they may
refer their concerns for consideration by the Local Government & Social Care
Ombudsman.
Not all complaints received by Adult Care are eligible to be considered under the
statutory procedure, and where a complaint does not meet the criteria, it will be
considered under the Council’s Corporate Complaints Procedure. Details of Adult
Care complaints considered under both procedures will be included in this report.
28 new complaints were received by Adult Care Services during the first half of 202021. Details of these complaints and their outcomes can be found below.
The types of complaints received
17 new complaints were received during the first quarter
1 complaint was upheld:
 Delay in invoice being issued for outstanding care home fees
8 complaints were partially upheld:
 Response to concerns re care provided by care home & disputed invoice
 Delay in assessment & lack of communication about allocated funding
 Arrangements for service user’s discharge from hospital
 Miscommunication regarding hospital discharge arrangements & ongoing care
needs
 Provision of support for service user and ongoing funding arrangements (joint
complaint with Health)
 Concerns regarding the assessment process and lack of communication
 Standard of care provided by care home

Page
1 9

Appendix 1


Lack of communication from care provider

8 complaints were not upheld.
11 new complaints were received during the second quarter
1 complaint was upheld:
 Adult Care involvement with service user whilst in hospital (joint with Health)
6 complaints were partially upheld:
 Standard of care provided to service user whilst in care home
 Level of care provided and delay in resolving charging issue
 Standard of service provided by care home, hospital & out of hours service
(joint with Health)
 Information given and lack of communication regarding level of client
contribution for care
 Lack of support and communication during home adaptations process
 Unresolved issues following adaptations to service user’s property
1 complaint was not upheld.
3 complaints are still ongoing.
Examples of Action Taken and Lessons Learned
First Quarter
Following the upheld complaint regarding a delay in an invoice being issued for care
home fees, an error inputting information was discussed with the worker in question
and additional training and support was discussed as part of their supervision. The
service also made changes to how managers have oversight of support plans and the
services that are added to the system to reduce the risk of future errors occurring.
Further to the complaint relating to the response to concerns raised about care
provided by a care home, changes have been made to develop how Rochdale Adult
Care responds to safeguarding concerns and how quality of care is monitored within
care homes. Each care home within the locality now has a link worker who visits and
makes contact with care homes on a regular basis. This has promoted the
communication between Rochdale Adult Care and the care homes in the locality and
has allowed the service to identify and respond proactively to any areas of concern.
Rochdale’s safeguarding policy has been updated, emphasising individual outcomes
and family involvement. The safeguarding closure process has also been developed,
which highlights the importance of closure discussions and meetings that are followed
up with a closure letter to all parties involved in the safeguarding enquiry.
As a result of the complaint regarding the standard of care provided by a care home,
although the concerns were historic they were passed to the Commissioning Team to
look into and to contact the home regarding their standard of care.
Second Quarter

Page2 10

Appendix 1
Following the upheld complaint regarding Adult Care’s involvement in a service user’s
care whilst in hospital, a review of the case was conducted with the relevant
practitioner to identify any learning opportunities and to potentially improve service
user and families’ experiences moving forward re clearer communication for
discharge pathways, policies and procedures.
As a result of the complaint relating to the level of care provided to a service user and
a delay in resolving a charging issue the following actions were taken:
 The terms of the contract are amended to require the provider to upload details
of actual care provided to the ‘Provider Portal’ and that payment is made on
the information received, not on what is prescribed. This will speed up any
future reconciliations.
 That Commissioning staff should be required to case note conversations and
interactions with service users / families / representatives, where appropriate,
on the core service user database for clarity, transparency and continuity.
 The System Development Group prioritise the development of the
Organisational Safeguarding Module of the case management system.
 Adult Care staff are reminded of the process for reconciliation for personal
budget charges and that the Personal Budget Policy is reviewed to ensure the
reconciliation process is clear.
 A full reconciliation of payments made to Comfort Call against the service
actually provided is made. In turn this should be reconciled to the charges
made to service users to identify if other residents have been overcharged for
their care and support.
A number of recommendations were made following the complaint regarding a lack of
support and communication during the home adaptations process:
 All correspondence in relation to an adaptation to be noted in the core case
management system, ALLIS, up to the point the adaptation is approved to
ensure that all people involved can access all the information, especially when
working remotely.
 All staff involved in adaptations attend a mandatory training course in respect
of understanding the responsibilities of the Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG)
Policy.
 Clear service standards are developed, focussing on the process and
communication for adaptations under the DFG programme to ensure people
accessing the programme can be clear what they can expect and the likely
timescales.
 The local DFG Policy is more widely publicised to members of the public with
clear online links.
 There are regular random audits of case notes by Mangers in the Home
Improvement Agency to try to ascertain where communication is poor and
improvement plans put in place to rectify this.
Timescales
There is no statutory timescale for dealing with Adult Social Care complaints, and the
timescale is agreed between the Investigator and the complainant in each case.
However, the aim is to complete investigations within 25 working days. The average
time taken to deal with Adult Care complaints closed during the first half of 2020-21
was 23 working days which was well within target.

Page
3 11

Appendix 1
Complaint Example
The following is an example of a how an Adult Social Care complaint has been dealt
with from receipt to resolution.
Complaint
A complaint was received during the first quarter by the Clinical Commissioning
Group (CCG) who contacted the Customer Feedback Team as the issues raised in
the complaint related to both Adult Social Care (ASC) and Health.
The complaint
related to provision of support for a service user and ongoing funding arrangements.
The complaint was passed to ASC and allocated to a Team Manager who liaised with
Health. As the majority of the concerns raised related to ASC it was agreed that they
would take the lead on the investigation with CCG investigating the issues relating to
Health and contributing to a joint response.
The Team Manager contacted the complainant to discuss their concerns in more
detail and agreed a timescale for response which was communicated to Health.
An investigation was undertaken into the issues raised, which included reviewing all
Adult Care records including case recordings, assessments and documentation. The
Investigating Officer also liaised with and gathered additional information from other
relevant services including the Commissioning/Quality Assurance Team and the
individual practitioners involved.
The investigation was completed within timescale and the overall finding was that the
complaint was partially upheld. A joint response letter was sent to the complainant
which explained the findings of the investigations from both organisations and
included an apology for issues experienced in relation to communication which could
have been clearer. Learning identified from the complaint was taken forward within
the individual services concerned.

Compliments
Compliments received from service users are also recorded and shared with staff. A
total of 32 compliments were recorded for Adult Care Services during this reporting
period, a breakdown and examples of which can be found below.
Team/Service Area
STARS

No.
19

Assessment & Support Planning

4

Home Improvement Agency,
Occupational Therapy & West Locality
Team

1

Compliment received from
Service User (14)
Relative of Service User (5)
Relative of Service User (3)
Professional (1)
Service User

Home Improvement Agency &
Middleton Locality Team

1

Service User

Occupational Therapy & Heywood

1

Relative of Service User

Page4 12

Appendix 1
Neighbourhood Team
Occupational Therapy

1

Relative of Service User

Sensory Intervention Team

1

Service User

West Locality Team

1

Relative of Service User

Middleton Locality Team

1

Service User

Financial Business Support Team

1

Professional

STARS Team & Locality Teams

1

Relative of Service User

“Thank you all so much for the care and kindness you showed to X. At this difficult
time we have been so worried about her and as a family have not been able to see
her. Phoning her every day she has been so positive and singing the praise of the
team who have been visiting her. Once again thank you so much. Hope you all stay
safe and well.”
Compliment for STARS Team
“Just a few words to sincerely thank you for your part in securing the installation of my
stairlift. Every aspect of this work has been exceptional, as I said above, your work
and the parts played by both Stannah and their sub-contractor (Electrician). Once
again, thank you so much.... You have given me my comparative freedom back.”
Compliment for Occupational Therapy Team, Home Improvement Agency &
West Locality Team.
After my dad was discharged from hospital a care plan was put into place to help my
dad's needs. After a few weeks his needs grew and with an elderly mum I did all I
could but many times didn’t know which way to turn until I received a phone call from
The Assessment & Support Planner. For the first time after talking with her I felt I was
no longer alone. Since then her help, understanding, reassurance and hard work both
on and behind the scenes was dealt with with friendliness while always remaining
professional. Once again she was my ‘go to’ and I'm sure with a very busy work
schedule she went above and beyond a 'paid job'. I have thanked her myself
however wanted to let the department she works for just how grateful I am and will
always be for her professionalism while always keeping the human touch. Please
could you once again pass on my gratitude.”
Compliment for Assessment & Support Planning Team
“To all the carers who looked after my wife. We deeply appreciate all of your help and
support at this difficult time. You all do a fantastic job.”
Compliment for STARS Team
“Just a little thank you for everything you have done to help us. We really appreciate
the support you have given us and you are a credit to your profession.”
Compliment for West Locality Team
“I would just like you to know how helpful and kind the Occupational Therapist has
been. She rang me several times regarding my mother and went to see her as soon

Page
5 13

Appendix 1
as she could. On her visit she made my mother and sister feel very comfortable and
was excellent in suggesting ways of helping my mother stay in her own home, grab
rails, bath seat, perch stool etc. Thank you for all your help.”
Compliment for Occupational Therapy Team

Page6 14

Appendix 1

Children’s Social Care
Changes were made to the children’s social services representations procedure as a
result of the Children (Leaving Care) Act 2000, Adoption and Children Act 2002 and
the Health and Social Care (Community Health and Standards) Act 2003.
Complaints are dealt with in accordance with The Children Act 1989 Representations
Procedure (England) Regulations 2006.
The handling and consideration of complaints under this procedure consists of three
stages:
Stage 1 - Local Resolution
Stage 2 - Investigation
Stage 3 - Review Panel
Local Resolution requires the local authority to resolve a complaint as close to the
point of contact with the child or young person as possible (i.e. through front line
management of the service). In doing so the local authority should consider the
wishes of the complainant about how the complaint should be dealt with. In most
circumstances complaints should be considered at Stage 1 in the first instance.
Consideration of complaints at Stage 2 is normally achieved through an investigation
conducted by an investigating officer and an independent person. Stage 2
commences either when the complainant requests it after an investigation at Stage 1,
or where the complainant and the local authority have agreed that Stage 1 is not
appropriate.
Where Stage 2 of the complaints procedure has been concluded and the complainant
is still dissatisfied, he/she will be eligible to request further consideration of the
complaint by a Review Panel. It is not possible to review a complaint that has not yet
been fully considered at Stage 2 (including providing the reports and adjudication to
the complainant).
Following the conclusion of all three stages of the complaints process, if the
complainant remains dissatisfied with the outcome of their complaint they may refer
their concerns for consideration by the Local Government & Social Care
Ombudsman.
Information relating to Children’s Social Care complaints is available on the Council’s
website, and leaflets providing full details of the complaints process and how to raise
concerns are provided as required. The Children’s Rights Service has also
developed complaints leaflets specifically for children in care.
Not all complaints received by Children’s Social Care are eligible to be considered
under the statutory procedure, and where a complaint does not meet the criteria, it will
be considered under the Council’s Corporate Complaints Procedure. Details of
complaints considered under both procedures will be included in this report.
A total of 20 new complaints were received by Children’s Services in the first half of
2020-21, 19 of which were dealt with under the statutory Children’s Social Care
complaints procedure and 1 complaint was dealt with under the Corporate Complaints
Procedure.

Page
7 15

Appendix 1
Where possible concerns are resolved by the service informally without progressing
to a formal complaint, which is beneficial to the complainant and contributes to a
reduction in the number of formal complaints being received.
Details of the complaints and their outcomes can be found below.
The types of complaints received
7 new complaints were received during the first quarter
7 new complaints were considered at stage one
6 complaints were partially upheld:
 Social Worker’s handling of confidential information relating to service user
 Perceived lack of support from service during the Child Protection process
 Funding issue with looked after child’s nursery placement
 Content of Section 7 report completed by Social Worker
 Lack of support for grandparent caring for their grandchild
 Information held on case file relating to complainant
1 complaint was not upheld.
13 new complaints were received during the second quarter
13 new complaints were considered at stage one
1 complaint was upheld:
 Concerns regarding the ‘Letterbox’ scheme for adopted child
7 complaints were partially upheld:
 Inaccurate information in report provided by Social Worker to fostering agency
 Actions of Social Worker when working with family
 Lack of financial support for looking after grandchildren as a family carer
 Lack of communication regarding child protection concerns raised
 Alleged comments by Social Worker & delayed response to concerns raised
 Delays in Special Guardianship Order (SGO) process
 Agreed amendments not applied to Education & Health Care Plan (EHCP)
(Corporate complaint)
5 complaints were not upheld.
Examples of Action Taken and Lessons Learned
First Quarter
Following the complaint regarding a perceived lack of support during the child
protection process, support was in place for a period of time through a child in need
plan, and the Practice Manager implemented a plan to manage this appropriately
moving forward which included:
 A Social Worker being co-allocated to the family to offer support to the
children.

Page8 16

Appendix 1




The Social Worker to contact the complainant to fully explain the Aims
assessment.
The Social Worker chased up counselling support.
The Practice Manager will contact the complainant each month until the case
moves over to the Child Protection team to check that they remain happy with
the plan in place.

As a result of the complaint relating to funding issues for a looked after child’s nursery
placement, the Social Work Team identified the following issues:
 That the PEP policy is not clear, is difficult to understand and is open to
different interpretation
 Social Workers are not always aware of the PEP process in terms of how
money is paid and when
 It is important to involve the Virtual School team the moment any issues occur
and ensure that a care planning meeting is held with all parties including
education provision.
The issues and learning from the complaint were taken into whole service meetings
and discussed with the Virtual School team to look at how to avoid the situation again
in the future.
In response to the complaint regarding the content of a Section 7 report, the Practice
Manager dealing with the complaint visited the complainant to discuss the concerns in
more detail. Following the visit correspondence continued via email and telephone
resulting in new and up to date information being considered which led to a review of
the original recommendation.
Second Quarter
An apology was given in response to the complaint relating to the ‘Letterbox’ scheme
as a letter from the complainant had been received but not acknowledged. The
Business Support Team were asked to send acknowledgments should any further
correspondence be received. An explanation of the current circumstances regarding
the case was also provided.
Further to the complaint relating to a lack of communication regarding child protection
concerns raised, the Practice Manager addressed the issue of good communication
with families with the Social Worker concerned as an area of practice learning. Areas
of learning and practice improvement were identified and plans were put in place to
address these both on an individual and team basis.
Following the corporate complaint regarding an Education & Health Care Plan
(EHCP) an apology was given as one amendment agreed during mediation had not
been changed. Both the Mediation Service and the EHC Assessment and Review
Team Manager reflected upon this and going forward will ensure that a copy of any
working document created during mediation is copied and sent to all parties
immediately after the meeting. By doing so, it will provide clarity on what has been
recorded and any omissions or misunderstandings can be rectified in a timely
manner.
Timescales
There are statutory timescales for dealing with Children’s Social Care complaints at
each stage of the process. Every attempt is made to resolve complaints within the

Page
9 17

Appendix 1
initial timescale; however, the regulations allow the timescale for each stage to be
extended in consultation with the complainant.
Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3

10 working days (can be extended to up to a maximum of 20 working
days)
25 working days (can be extended up to a maximum of 65 working
days)
Acknowledgement within 2 working days, review to be held within 30
working days.

19 of the complaints received during the first and second quarters were dealt with
under the statutory Social Care complaints procedure at stage one, 13 of which were
responded to within the statutory timescale.
Complaint Example
The following is an example of a how a Children’s Social Care complaint has been
dealt with from receipt to resolution.
Stage one complaint
A complaint was received by the Customer Feedback Team via the online form on the
Council website. The complaint was from a parent and related to the content of a
Section 7 report completed by a Social Worker.
The complaint was registered at stage one of the statutory complaints procedure and
was allocated to a Practice Manager for investigation. An acknowledgement was sent
to the complainant.
The Practice Manager visited the complainant to discuss the concerns raised and the
complainant provided a more detailed written version of the complaint. The Practice
Manager spent some time with the family, and continued to liaise with the
complainant regularly via telephone and email after the meeting.
A full investigation was undertaken including discussing the case with the Social
Worker and the Head of Service. It was necessary to extend the timescale slightly to
enable full consideration of the issues raised and the complainant was kept updated
throughout the process.
The findings of the investigation were that the Section 7 report was balanced and
impartial, however the wording of two paragraphs was changed slightly to reflect the
full ‘context’ of the young person's current circumstances. The service considered
new and up to date information which led to a review of the original recommendation.
The complaint was found to be partially upheld and was resolved at stage one.
Details of the action taken as a result of the complaint are also included under
‘Lessons Learned’ above.

Page
10 18

Appendix 1

Compliments
Compliments received from service users are also recorded and shared with staff. 38
compliments were recorded for Children’s Social Care Services during the first half of
2020-21, a breakdown and examples of which can be found below.

Team/Service Area
Child Protection & Court Team

No.
28

Compliment received from
Professional (20)
Parent/family (6)
Young person (1)
Foster carers (1)
Parent (3)
Professional (1)

Family Information Service

4

Children & Young People with
Additional Needs Service

3

Parent (2)
Young person (1)

Fostering Team

1

Foster carer

Family Time Facilitator

1

Parent

Youth Service

1

Resident

“The adoption plan / process has not been without it’s challenges but the Social
Worker and Advanced Practitioner have been incredibly supportive and gone over
and above to ensure X’s transition to her adoptive family was successful. They have
been in contact evenings and weekends and worked closely with ourselves to resolve
any concerns that have been raised. They have been quick to pass on information,
have highlighted concerns where necessary but have been equally balanced about
the positives of the carers and the way in which they responded to X’s plan in the final
week. It has been a pleasure to work with them.”
Compliment for Child Protection & Court Team
“You have done a really brilliant job throughout our time working together with X and
her family, you are a real credit to your team and it is down to your efforts that the
situation is moving forwards so quickly at this time. I have copied in your manager as
I wanted to recognise the excellent work that you do under really difficult
circumstances, both at the current time and also as a Social Worker for a Local
Authority!”
Compliment for Child Protection & Court Team
“To X, thank you for supporting me and making my life better.”
Compliment from young person for Children with Additional Needs Team
“Just to say thank you so much for your hard work with my family. Things are a lot
better now. Thanks for all the professionals too and the support to deal with them.
Thanks for making me engage with all when I didn't want to. When I did, I started to
see so many changes. I learnt one thing, that even when we are tired, down with so
many problems, to not give up, always fight as the end results are always going to be
positive and I thank you for that. Thank you, we appreciate everything you've done.

Page
11 19

Appendix 1
You don't judge, you help. Wish you all the best, you make a difference to families.”
Compliment for Child Protection & Court Team
“I just wanted to say how much I have appreciated all the hard work the Social Worker
has done with our family. She has been a massive support to us during some very
difficult times, keeping us on track with legislations and regulations and most of all
moral support.”
Compliment for Fostering Team
“We received the Life Story book and it's wonderful! Lots of pictures and great
explanation. Great job! Well done and thank you very much from our bottom of our
hearts! We are going to show it to X when he's a bit bigger and more mature to
understand it. May God bless you for your lovely and passionate heart! Thank you
very much!”
Compliment for Family Time Facilitator

Page
12 20

Appendix 2

Page 21
1

Appendix 2

Page 22
2

Appendix 2

Page 23
3

Appendix 2

Page 24
4

Appendix 2

Page 25
5

Appendix 2

Page 26
6

Agenda Item 6
Report to Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Date of Meeting
Portfolio

Report Author
Public/Private Document

18th February 2021
Getting a Good Start
Portfolio and Healthy
Lives Portfolio
Ben Jorgensen
Public

Adult, Children & Public Health Directorate Plans 2020-21:
Quarter 3 Performance Update
Executive Summary
1.

To report progress at the end of Quarter 3 (1st October – 31st December)
towards achievement of the targets contained in the Adult Care Directorate
Plan 2020-21, Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2020-21 and Public
Health Directorate Plan 2020-21.
Recommendation

2.

Members are asked to review the information contained within the report
and the appendices.
Reason for Recommendation

3.

In accordance with the Council’s performance management framework,
progress toward targets contained within Directorate Plans are to be
reported to relevant Overview & Scrutiny Committees at the end of each
quarter.

3.1

The Quarter 3 progress reports for the Adult Care Directorate, Children’s
Services and Public Health Directorate are attached at Appendix 1, 2 and 3
respectively. Actions within each appendix have been colour coded in
accordance with the following criteria:

3.2

Red: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the target
date
Amber: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the
target date due to circumstances outside of the directorate’s control
Green: Action completed by the target date
Purple: Action is not yet due for completion but is currently on track
The appendix includes a commentary against actions that are showing red,
amber or purple.

Page 27

Key Points for Consideration
4.

Adult Care Directorate Plan 2020-21 Progress

Performance Overview
4.1

38% (5) of the actions included in the Directorate Plan 2020-21 are ongoing.
31% (4) actions are not fully complete and the action due date has now
passed. A further 31% (4) actions are now complete. The chart below shows
the overall performance of the Directorate in meeting its plan targets at the
end of Quarter 3.

4.2

The actions that aren’t fully complete and the due dates have passed
(Amber) relate to:
 To work towards a new approach to the joint management (health
and social care) of people with complex issues around autism and
Learning difficulties
 Develop a progressive fee structure that supports more in borough
provision for people across the client group spectrum
 Secondary and specialist services for people with LD and / or Autism
will be reviewed to ensure our offer is fully integrated between Health
& Social Care
 The ASC Commissioning Programme Structure will be updated to
deliver a comprehensive range of cross cutting themed projects
related to the above strategy

Quarter 3 Summary

Page 28

4.3

To support the delivery of integrated neighbourhood working a partnership
approach is currently being developed along with health colleagues. Two colocated Integrated Neighbourhood Teams (INTs) have now achieved colocation in Brook House and Globe House. Further co-location efforts are on
track, and co-location at the Phoenix Centre should be achieved at Feb 21.
Designated links with each neighbourhood team is now in place, and a plan
has been produced to identify co-terminus working.

4.4

Quarterly Dementia Partnership Board meetings have been established
which are well attended across health, social care, providers and VCSE
organisations. There is a project plan in place to achieve the objectives set
out in the strategy to improve services to people with mental health issues,
with actions being progressed by Partnership Board members.

4.5

Work to both help integrate new housing schemes into neighbourhoods and
assist enact phase 2 of “show and tell “work within strategic housing is now
complete. The first of new schemes (River Beal) is now live. The
accommodation panel is active and working, and the future schemes, e.g.
Cherwell flats, have been slightly postponed due to the Covid-19 pandemic
and will continue in the next final financial year. Directorate approval for
accommodation panel has been sought and approved.

4.6

A 5-year Accommodation with support Strategy will be published. A series of
Commissioning Statements for the strategy have been developed these will
include information that helps practitioners understand what is in the market.
A Market Position Statement will also be published. This will be a providerfacing document with key information about the market, which will inform
providers of our commissioning intentions

4.7

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2020-21 Progress
Performance Overview

4.8

89% (8) of the actions included in the Directorate Plan 2020-21 are ongoing.
One action is now complete. The chart below shows the overall performance
of the Directorate in meeting its plan targets at the end of Quarter 3.

Page 29

Quarter 3 Summary
4.9

As part of the action to provide sufficient school places for all children within
the Borough there has been progress on the development of two sites. In
Middleton the Edgar Wood Academy opening has been planned in for
September 2022, outline planning approved October 2020. Early opening in
temporary accommodation proposed for September 2021 on Hopwood Hall
College site is subject to DfE confirmation before national offer day. In the
Pennines the Star Academy Trust has been appointed. Trust plan to selfdeliver with assistance/approval from DfE. Surveys underway on site and
pre-application Planning meetings scheduled. Informal indications from DfE
that September 2022 delivery is unlikely and it may now be 2023.

4.10 All early help and early years services have now been integrated under the
umbrella of the Family Service Model with Children’s Centres and Locality
teams merging, becoming co- terminus and delivering a whole family
approach. In Pennine locality this includes further work with the Place team
considering a whole system Children’s and Adults approach through the
Pennine Co-operative Place Partnership. The parenting offer has been
reviewed and a new blended offer implemented through virtual and face to
face delivery on a needs led basis, evolving from timetabled term time
courses to ensure interventions respond to family need.
4.11 Digitalisation of ASQ assessments went live in September 2020 for
Rochdale and Bury in order to improve the quality and integration of age
related assessments, and ensure continued sufficient childcare across the
borough following the impact of Covid 19. Following the success of this,
Rochdale have agreed to also digitise WellComm assessments.
4.12 In order to ensure workforce stability is maintained and strengthened there
has been directorate wide learning and development has been agreed and
is being commissioned to equip colleagues across the service with the
knowledge and understanding about racism and anti-racism. This will be
delivered throughout 2021. A new approach to recruitment has recently
been trailed with limited success. However further work on this is scheduled
for early 2021 to continue to keep our recruitment campaigns competitive.
Staff turnover has significantly reduced. Well established arrangements are
in place which allow staff at all levels in the organisation to contribute to
service wide developments, these include individual team meetings, full
service communication events, Advanced practitioners network, Practice
Managers meeting and other management meetings.

4.13 Public Health & Wellbeing Directorate Plan 2019-20 Progress
Performance Overview
4.14 100% (9) of the actions included in the Directorate Plan 2020-21 are
ongoing. The chart below shows the overall performance of the Directorate
in meeting its plan targets at the end of Quarter 3.

Page 30

Quarter 3 Summary
4.15 The review of public health in the context of the new system architecture is
progressing. Collaborative leadership has been developed at a locality level
and continues to be demonstrated across public health, adult care and
neighbourhoods through the neighbourhood prevention review.
Commissioning intentions have been issued and approved in Q3 by ICB.
4.16 As part of the action to implement the new tiered delivery model tackling
tobacco addiction; the pharmacy tier 2 offer has now been rolled out across
10 pharmacies working closely with the specialist service to offer the
appropriate level of support to meet resident’s needs. Priority groups and
refreshed smoking pathways are now in place. Clear recording and reporting
to evidence impact and any changes required to strengthen the model is the
next stage.
4.17 Scope has been confirmed and updates have been taken to leadership in
relation to the development and implementation of a system wide prevention
strategy. Work will continue in Q4 with the majority of system change being
implemented in 21/22. A project team and structure have been established
and governance is routed through leadership. A commissioning intentions
report relating to Health Improvement service is due to go to January ICB.
Procurement will now take place in 21/22.
4.18 The Covid-19 vaccination programme has now been mobilised. NHSE leads
the national programme and has commissioned a number of NHS providers
to deliver the programme. Public health has worked with stakeholders from
across the local system to coordinate and support the programme. This
includes work on supporting operational standards and delivery,
prioritisation, assurance processes, intelligence, communications and
community engagement.
Alternatives Considered
4.19 Not applicable

Page 31

Costs and Budget Summary
5.

None

Risk and Policy Implications
6.

None

Consultation
7.

Not required

Background Papers
8.

Place of Inspection

Appendix 1 - Adult Care
Directorate Plan 2020-21 Q3

Number One Riverside, Smith Street,
Rochdale OL16 1XU

Appendix 2 – Children’s
Services Directorate Plan 202021 Q3
Appendix 3 – Public Health
Directorate Plan 2020-21 Q3

For Further Information Contact:

Ben Jorgensen, ,
ben.jorgensen@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 32

Adult Social Care Services Directorate Plan 2020-21
Action Plan

Due Date

AC2001 Support the delivery of integrated neighbourhood working

31 March 2021



Ref.

Due

Status

Name

Status

% Complete

90%
%
Complete

To further develop a partnership approach and work to a set of guiding principles which
31 March 2021

60%
evidence good neighbourhood working
We are currently developing a partnership approach, and how we will deepen and develop this will be clarified in the Adult Care 21/22 business plan, elements of which
around this we are developing with health colleagues.
AC2001.A

AC2001.B

To have two co-located Integrated Neighbourhood Teams (INT) /Neighbourhood teams

31 March 2021



100%

Page 33

Two co-located Integrated Neighbourhood Teams (INTs) have now achieved co-location in Brook House and Globe House, therefore completing this action. Further colocation efforts are on track, and co-location at the Phoenix Centre should be achieved at Feb 21.
AC2001.C

To initialise formal links with Pennine Care and Mental health services on a neighbourhood
level

31 March 2021



100%

Designated links with each neighbourhood team is now in place, and a plan has been produced to identify co-terminus working. This action is now complete.
AC2001.D

Delivery and administration of a neighbourhood data set in place

30 September 2020



100%

91%

The first iteration of a Health & Social Care joint dataset (Neighbourhood Dataset) will be on-line from 15th October (re September data).

AC2002 Clarify and embed delivery of reablement and support service based on “Good help “
principles

31 March 2021



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

AC2002.A

New Service offer for people with Mental Health /Substance/CSE issues/contextual
(transitional) safeguarding issues

30 April 2020



Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 1 Of 8

%
Complete
100%

Adult Social Care Services Directorate Plan 2020-21
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

% Complete

In place and Complete
AC2002.B

Clear pathways in and out of service and linkage to ALLIS case working/records system

30 September 2020



100%

30 September 2020



90%

In place and Complete
AC2002.C

Linkage and synergy with other providers understood

The R&R engagement event is currently scheduled for the 12th Jan. The newly formed Recovery & Reablement team is in place and initial performance data is being
collected. We have developed linkages with major stakeholders and events are planned for Quarter 4.
31 March 2021



75%

AC2003 Implement system improvements in respect of commissioning information and payments

31 March 2021



84%

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

AC2003.A

Implement payment cards for cash budgets

31 March 2021



100%

31 March 2021



75%

AC2002.D

Engagement and coproduction for future service development plans developed

Page 34

Engagement events are planned for Q4.

%
Complete

Complete and in place
AC2003.B

Day care payments to providers based on actuals rather than assessed

From 25th January 2021 payments for day care will be made based on the information provided through the Provider Portal in respect of actual service delivery.
AC2003.C

Individual Service Fund arrangements are to also be on the provider portal

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 2 Of 8

31 March 2021



75%

Adult Social Care Services Directorate Plan 2020-21
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

% Complete

The ISF Project is on track and Harehill (which was previously an ISF) is being prepared to be live on the portal to be paid on 'actuals'.
AC2003.D

Review and improvements to the respite payment system (payment to providers)

31 March 2021



70%

31 March 2021



100%

31 March 2021



70%

On track. Consultation ends on 23rd December 2020 regarding new rates.
AC2003.E

To have 50% of users to be paying charges for home care via a direct debit arrangement

The latest position is that 64% of non-residential income is now paid by direct debit.

AC2004 Improved services to people with a mental health issue including dementia

Page 35

%
Complete

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

AC2004.A

Develop 5 year AMHP strategy (approved mental health professional)

31 March 2021



100%

31 March 2021



40%

The 5 year AMHP strategy is now in place, and work is currently being undertaken regarding implementation.
AC2004.B

Establish dementia operations /tactical group to enact dementia strategy around dementia
friendly communities

Quarterly Dementia Partnership Board meetings are well attended across health, social care, providers and VCSE organisations. There is a project plan in place to achieve
the objectives set out in the strategy with actions being progressed by Partnership Board members.

AC2005 To provide options for synergy of current provider services with Adult Social Care Operations

30 September 2020



Ref.

Due

Status

Name

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 3 Of 8

100%
%
Complete

Adult Social Care Services Directorate Plan 2020-21
Action Plan

AC2005.A

Due Date

Review of current structure around delivery services and develop option plan for future
delivery

30 September 2020

Status

% Complete



100%

A review or the current structure has been completed, and public consultation re the proposed structure has been undertaken. A staff consultation is now underway.

AC2006 Work to both help integrate new housing schemes into neighbourhoods and assist enact phase
30 November 2020
2 of “show and tell “work within strategic housing



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

AC2006.A

Work around development of extra care schemes and streamline accommodation panel
activity in line with corporate strategic direction

30 November 2020



100%
%
Complete
100%

Page 36

The first of new schemes (River Beal) is now live. The accommodation panel is active and working, and the future schemes, e.g. Cherwell flats, have been slightly
postponed due to covid into the next final financial year. Directorate approval for accommodation panel has been sought and approved.

AC2007 To work towards a new approach to the joint management (health and social care) of people
with complex issues around autism and Learning difficulties

30 September 2020



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

AC2007.A

To produce an options paper for director approval for a way forward in terms of service
delivery (being based on the premise we intend to maximise how we align /integrate both
health and Social care elements of service delivery)

30 September 2020



80%

31 March 2021



100%

80%
%
Complete

Options paper has now been drafted and is awaiting director approval.

AC2008 To change the culture around how we provide services form an analogue to a digital approach
wherever possible with an emphasis on quality improvement

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 4 Of 8

Adult Social Care Services Directorate Plan 2020-21
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

AC2008.A

To promote digital solutions in line with the corporate strategy

31 March 2021



% Complete

%
Complete
100%

We continue to promote digital solutions and have developed a workstream within our assistive technology board to take this forward. There are plans in place to recruit
a digital inclusion officer from next year.
AC2008.B

To embed QI approaches within the business planning cycle

31 March 2021



100%

Each team in ASC has a QI project, being monitored via quality improvement board. The expectation is this will be a concurrent feature in our team plans and directorate
plans going forward. Project management/ QI training has been offered and undertaken by a wide range of staff within ASC

31 March 2021



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

AC2009.A

Produce a report setting out our Commissioning intentions for 20/21 & 21/22 to comply with
the MH Investment Standard / reflect the LTP objectives and support the ambitions of the LCO
and neighbourhood Mental Health offer

30 November 2020



Page 37

AC2009 The Mental Health Investment Standard is effectively commissioned across the CCG and the
LA.

63%
%
Complete
100%

A Mental Health Integration Plan is being produced and is planned to be shared with ICB by Dec 20. This will feed into the work regarding setting out Commissioning
Intentions. Report will be included in the Commissioning Intentions report which has been shared with ICB, and is due for a decision in Oct 20.
AC2009.B

Review grant funded service arrangements (MIND/Alzheimer’s’) & recommission the service

31 March 2021



100%

30 September 2020



25%

31 December 2020



30%

Due to the impact of Covid-19, we had paused business and usual and we will have a plan in place by the end of Q2
AC2009.C

Deliver a project to embed personal health budgets for people on s117

As per Q2 report. Progress to be made in Q4.
AC2009.D

Produce a policy & procedure to meet the CCG’s Ml H Act s140 responsibilities to make
available sufficient acute MH Act beds to meet the needs of the population

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 5 Of 8

Adult Social Care Services Directorate Plan 2020-21
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

% Complete

As per Q2 report. Progress to be made in Q4.

AC2010 Develop a progressive fee structure that supports more in borough provision for people across
the client group spectrum

31 December 2020



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

AC2010.A

To produce a project plan that identifies the key issues and business requirements that is
evidence driven

30 September 2020



100%

31 December 2020



75%

31 December 2020



75%

AC2011 Secondary and specialist services for people with LD and / or Autism will be reviewed to
ensure our offer is fully integrated between Health & Social Care

31 December 2020



50%

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

AC2011.A

An integrated Health & Social Care specification for complex learning disabilities will be
produced

31 December 2020



83%
%
Complete

A project plan has been produced and is being monitored.

Page 38

Conclude market engagement with providers, service users and assessment teams to better
understand issues and barriers

AC2010.C

Develop fee setting differential rates based on market engagement

AC2010.B

Fee consultation nearing completion. LD Day Service review not completed. Supported Living programme ongoing.

Residential care banding model shared with providers via fees consultation process.

LDA report presented to CQPG, consultation with ASC & PCFT has taken place, further work required to gain PCFT agreement.

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 6 Of 8

%
Complete
50%

Adult Social Care Services Directorate Plan 2020-21
Action Plan

AC2011.B

Due Date

We will improve our diagnostic & treatment service for people with autism by working with the
current provider to deliver improved outcomes

30 September 2020

Status



% Complete

50%

New contract agreed and has been implemented. Workshop to be deferred to Q4, due to Covid-19 delay. Mental Health provider currently under national command and
control due to Covid.

AC2012 A 5-year Accommodation with support Strategy will be published

30 April 2020



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

AC2012.A

A series of Commissioning Statements will be published – these will include information that
helps practitioners understand what is in the market

30 April 2020



100%
%
Complete
100%

Page 39

Complete – signed off at ICB at the end of May. Published with a legal caveat to rerun the data by the end of July to understand the impact of covid
A Market Position Statement will be published. This will be a provider-facing document with
key information in it about the market, which will inform providers of our commissioning
30 April 2020

100%
intentions
Completed and published MPS along with accommodation support strategy. Published with a legal caveat to rerun the data by the end of July to understand the impact
of covid
AC2012.B

AC2013 The ASC Commissioning Programme Structure will be updated to deliver a comprehensive
range of cross cutting themed projects related to the above strategy

31 December 2020



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

AC2013.A

Development of 15 projects to improve services for: Older people (3 projects), Working age
adults with long term conditions (6 projects) and People with complex & chaotic lives (6
projects)

31 December 2020



Programme refined and in place, governance in place.

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 7 Of 8

50%
%
Complete
50%

Adult Social Care Services Directorate Plan 2020-21
Action Plan

Due Date

Page 40
Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 8 Of 8

Status

% Complete

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2020-21
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

%Complete

CS2001 Implement the School Improvement Strategy to improve pupil achievement at all key stages

31 March 2021



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2001.A

Embed Communication and Language strategy within the 50 settings by revisiting training,
monitoring, implementation and impact

31 March 2021



75%



75%



60%

50%

% Complete

In quarter 3 we have been able to revisit and embed the principles and approach of the CLL project across the borough.
CS2001.B

Extend the EYFS CLL strategy to the remaining 18 primary settings and into year 1 classes

31 March 2021

Training for year 1 classes has taken place in the Autumn term in addition to further progressing work within nursery and Reception classes.

Page 41

CS2001.C

Develop a 2021 leavers catch up strategy

31 March 2021

Work with the Secondary curriculum deputies group has continued. Schools are reviewing their curriculum offer to ensure breadth of curriculum offer and interventions.
To strengthen the support and challenge to under-performing secondary settings by ensuring
31 March 2021

50%
robust data conversations
Data conversations have been completed with all of the secondary schools. The service has reconvened work with our secondary schools who are categorised as SCC.
Second recovery conversations are taking place with increased focus on schools who saw a decline in outcomes in 2019.
CS2001.D

CS2001.E

Deployment of School Improvement Partners establishing bespoke support plans

31 March 2021



100%

Initial KIT conversations have been started for the new school year and SIPs have been deployed. By November 2020, this process will have been completed and bespoke
plans for priority schools will be established.
Complete SEND Peer Reviews in all secondary schools to ensure that the teaching is wellCS2001.F
matched to the needs of SEN support pupils to enable improved progress through key stage 3
31 March 2021

40%
and 4
This workstream no longer in progress due to the pandemic.
CS2001.G

To ensure all primary schools have participated within a SEND peer review or a SEND audit of
practice focusing on pupils’ emotional mental health of pupils

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 1 Of 8

31 March 2021



0%

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2020-21
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

%Complete

This workstream no longer in progress due to the pandemic.
CS2001.H

Work with schools and partners to commence the implementation of the recommendations
from the Inclusion Strategy

31 March 2021



25%

During quarter 2 we have identified progress in a number of areas in the Inclusion Strategy to include; the implementation of Behaviour Improvement panels,
development of a the KS4 vocational offer, revision of the management move protocols, extension of the Rochdale Attachment Friendly Schools Programme
CS2001.I

To work with schools to determine intervention and catch-up strategies to minimise the impact
of Covid19 on educational outcomes

31 March 2021



30%

Second KIT conversations have been initiated with schools, these conversations focus on learning gaps, interventions and early impact of intervention.

31 March 2021



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2002.A

Review of the availability of primary and secondary school places and negotiation of additional
places with schools and DfE for 2021

31 March 2021



Page 42

CS2002 Provide sufficient school places for all children within the Borough

60%

% Complete
70%

Reports to Cabinet for both Primary and Secondary sectors on 29th September 2020 providing updated position and required actions. No further updates for Q3
CS2002.B

Support the delivery of two secondary Free Schools which are required in the Borough for 2021
and 2022 respectively, the Council has approved release of sites for these

31 March 2021



60%

Middleton - Edgar Wood Academy opening planned on Bowlee site September 2022, outline planning approved October 2020. Early opening in temporary
accommodation proposed for September 2021 on Hopwood Hall College site subject to DfE confirmation before national offer day. Pennines - Star Academy Trust
appointed. Trust plan to self-deliver with assistance/approval from DfE. Surveys underway on site and pre-application Planning meetings scheduled. Informal indications
from DfE that September 2022 delivery is unlikely and it may now be 2023.
CS2002.C

Commence the development of 75 place Free Special School (ASC) with DfE and New Bridge Trust

31 March 2021



50%

Site approved by Cabinet. New Bridge Academy specific brief negotiated between Trust and DfE. Meetings held between RBC Heads of Service and Trust to understand
local SEN cohort needs. Stakeholder engagement event planned. Opening date pending confirmation by DfE. No further updates for Q3

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 2 Of 8

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2020-21
Action Plan

Due Date

CS2003 Realign early help, relational and school readiness services on an integrated locality footprint to
ensure effective mainstreaming of the Family Service Model

31 March 2021

Status

%Complete



86%

Ref.

Name
Due
Status
% Complete
Design a Family Offer to be delivered across localities following the review of Early Help and
CS2003.A
Early Years Services that when implemented will deliver relational and integrated early help,
31 March 2021

100%
parenting and school readiness
All early help and early years services have now been integrated under the umbrella of the Family Service Model with Children’s Centres and Locality teams merging,
becoming co- terminus and delivering a whole family approach. In Pennine locality this includes further work with the Place team considering a whole system Children’s
and Adults approach through the Pennine Co-operative Place Partnership. The parenting offer has been reviewed and a new blended offer implemented through virtual
and face to face delivery on a needs led basis, evolving from timetabled term time courses to ensure interventions respond to family need. Parenting and relational
programmes have been integrated and are co-ordinated by a specific team, and there are currently 7 evidenced based programmes available for families with children of
all ages. A consistent virtual and face to face covid family offer is in place at a locality level to respond to the current needs of families, this will be reviewed as restrictions
change with lessons learnt from this period influencing the family offer going forward.

Page 43

CS2003.B

Youth Service to complete community profiles/needs analysis based on young people’s needs in
the community

31 January 2021



80%

Draft Community profiles have been completed. Township profiles to be completed Dec 2020 and borough wide profile completed. On track for completion.
CS2003.C

Improved communication of support programmes to school to extend high quality youth
provision

31 January 2021



80%

Youth Endowment funded Project in Falinge Park High School with clear link between school, community and alternative curriculum project. Youth worker in school 2
days per week. Links established with Newhouse Academy to offer mentoring support in school.

CS2004 Continued implementation and embedding of the SEND (Special Educational Needs/ Disabilities)
reforms

31 January 2021



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS200A.A

Collaboratively develop the five year SEND Support Strategy

31 January 2021



Draft SEND Strategy presented to CWD partnership board on the 04-12-20. Strategy will be completed in January once the SEND JSNA is finalised.
Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 3 Of 8

80%

% Complete
60%

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2020-21
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

%Complete

Increase the effective use of SEND Support Plans to embed the graduated response to reduce
30 December 2020

70%
need/dependency on EHCP
At the SENCO Meeting in November SEND Support plan was reviewed and updates agreed. Head Teacher T&F group likewise review the work on the 01-12-20 and agreed
additional amendment. Rolling out of the SEND Support plans will commence in Spring term. Early Support Keyworker Team are piloting the use of Tapestry which is
electronic Support plan with parents to feed into an ongoing support plan.
CS2004.B

CS2004.C

Re-design the formulation of EHCPlans with Health, Care and Education to ensure that the plans
are effective and acted upon

30 November 2020



100%

The new EHCP request have been completed and rolled out. Next steps now which is underway is the revision of the Health and social care EHCP advice
CS2004.D

Implement a Joint Health/Social Care and Education Quality assurance EHCP framework

30 September 2020



90%

Page 44

Agreement in place - full implementation to commence in January 2021 - Current recruitment of full time DCO will support and enable capacity of QA across the whole of
health.
CS2004.E

Extend the current unassessed short break offer to increase impact

30 December 2020



90%

Universal Short break pilot of Art project now in place, Activity pack work has been commissioned and recommissioning of Circus skills being progressed.
CS2004.F

Commence the Preparing for Adulthood training offer across all agencies

30 December 2020



70%

100%

10 staff now completed the train the training preparing for adult hood – so training offer can be rolled out in January onward.

CS2005 Improve the quality and integration of age related assessments, and ensure continued sufficient
childcare across the borough following the impact of Covid 19

31 March 2021



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2005.A

Digitisation of Early Years assessments through the GM Early Years App in partnership with
Northern Care Alliance and in line with the GM digitisation strategy

31 March 2021



Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 4 Of 8

% Complete
100%

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2020-21
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

%Complete

Digitalisation of ASQ assessments went live in September 2020 for Rochdale and Bury, the first nationally. Following the success of this, Rochdale have agreed to also
digitise WellComm assessments.
Review and update service strategy to ensure childcare sufficiency in response to covid.
CS2005.B
Increased childcare brokerage; communication with childcare providers; implement a flexible
30 July 2020

100%
funding approach
Service Procedures updated with new offer to providers in place, additional brokerage process in place and being provided, covid funding approach implemented for
sector. Currently an excess of childcare places, which will be monitored in terms of take up of free entitlement.

31 March 2021



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2006.A

Provide more development opportunities for employees from black and minority ethnic
communities

31 March 2021



Page 45

CS2006 Workforce stability is maintained and strengthened

83%

% Complete
75%

Directorate wide learning and development has been agreed and is being commissioned to equip colleagues across the service with the knowledge and understanding
about racism and anti-racism. This will be delivered throughout 2021.
CS2006.B

Implement the recruitment and retention strategy to reduce the number of children who
experience a change in social worker

31 March 2021



75%

A new approach to recruitment has recently been trailed with limited success. However further work on this is scheduled for early 2021 to continue to keep our
recruitment campaigns competitive. Staff turnover has significantly reduced.
CS2006.C

Establish mechanisms to ensure that staff at every level in the organisation influence strategy
and practice standards

31 March 2021



100%

Well established arrangements are in place which allow staff at all levels in the organisation to contribute to service wide developments, these include individual team
meetings, full service communication events, Advanced practitioners network, Practice Managers meeting and other management meetings. In line with our relational
practice approaches we continue to encourage staff at all levels to contribute.

CS2007 Safely stabilise and reduce the number of children in need of protection and children cared for
through embedding innovative approaches

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 5 Of 8

31 March 2021



58%

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2020-21
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2007.A

Further develop No Wrong Door / ACT to: Support children edging towards care to live
successfully in the community, support children in care to live in family placements, promote the
safeguarding of adolescents, enabling them to have security in their care

31 March 2021



%Complete

% Complete
100%

Working model for NWD has now been implemented and staff across the service are working towards the key philosophies associated with the model. 4 children
currently living in the NWD residential Hub and the level of outreach support for other children on the edge of care is starting to build. ACT pilot has started with a social
worker in Cared for Children adopting the model whilst holding a reduced statutory caseload. 6 weekly review meetings to evaluate and support the pilot will take place
from January 2021. ACT will be further rolled out into CP/Court – a meeting is planned in the New Year to consider the practical arrangements in relation to this.
CS2007.B

Implement the Strengthening Families (NEST) programme

30 September 2020



100%

The NEST team is now fully operational and has started to accept cases both on Pathway A and Pathway B. The team structure is in place and settled. The training package
to be delivered by the Strengthen Practice team is due to commence in October 2020 which will strengthen the operational ethos of the NEST team.

Page 46

Embed the Family Services Model to identify and respond to neglect at the earliest stage in
families

CS2007.D

Implement a service wide engagement strategy for young people, parents and carers

CS2007.C

31 January 2021



40%

EHASH continues to align to the localities in relation to addressing neglect and the stronger implementation of Graded Care profile whilst families remain in an EH phase.
We are currently working on developing the Neglect Strategy and task and finish groups are currently forming to consider the tool and its effectiveness for partnership
agencies. In relation to Early Help Assessments we are now developing a pathway from EHASH into locality. EHASH has been piloting the use of Early Help assessments
from first point of contact in EHASH rather than using a MASH gathering and referring to locality in order to streamline the offer to children and families. This process will
reduce any potential drift caused of referring EH assessments across to locality and will also enable families to have more proactive response. To continue to deliver this
service longer term we are setting up strategic task and finish groups in order to ensure partners and locality are part of the pathways from EHASH this is still in infancy
and a period of time and planning is still ongoing. The overall driver continues to be a consistent read across from EHASH to locality offer in order to offer a whole system
approach in Early Help and locality hubs.
31 January 2021



50%

The group have continued to meet and have agreed a number of tasks with timescales to meet young people and carry out discussions with young people. This group has
been meeting and are proactive in the creation of movement of this agenda. The group has agreed to meet with young people and they are actively involved in recruiting
young people. It is hoped in January the group will have provided some ideas to move forwards. Due to the covid pandemic this has been sadly delayed but there is now a
great deal of energy to drive this forwards.

CS2007.E

Implement and embed the Child First Offender Second Strategy (incorporating the Youth
Violence Strategy and HMIP inspection action plan)

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 6 Of 8

31 January 2021



100%

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2020-21
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

%Complete

CFOS Partnership YJ Plan reviewed at December YJ Partnership Board. All actions on track for completion in timescales. New performance YJ card developed to better
track CF outcomes. 2020/21 SYV Plan agreed & signed off by DCS. Delivery has commenced with performance framework for reporting impact. SYC across Bury &
Rochdale for under 18's has reduced between year ending June 2019 & year ending June 2020.(YJB data) showing positive impact of SYV Plan 19/20

CS2008 Secure permanence for more children, ensuring there are sufficient local placements and choice
where children need to be cared for / adopted

31 March 2021



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2008.A

Implement the sufficiency strategy

31 March 2021



75%



50%

68%

% Complete

This has now been presented to the corporate parenting group and now needs publication. IG to liaise with commissioners and media team

Page 47

CS2008.B

Implement Project fostering to restore in-house fostering services to a position of growth. In
particular implement: Mocking Bird, PACE practice model, Secure Base, supported lodgings
provision

31 March 2021

In year increase in utilisation of in house foster carers (293 children at the end of November - this represents an increase of 18 children compared to 31/3/2020). 12 new
fostering households have now been recruited with 19 households in the assessment phase. Work on implementing Mockingbird has continued following establishment
of the Implementation Working Group. Webinar briefings remain ongoing and we now have expressions of interest (x3) for the Hub Home Carer. Training of foster carers
in the secure base approach has started during Q3 and has been well received. WE have also undertaken our first DDP training session as part of the roll out of PACE.
CS2008.C

Implement the Permanence Strategy 2019/20

31 December 2020



75%

Delays in implementing the permanence panel which will now happen during Q4. Permanence strategy has been published and briefings for staff undertaken. Currently
working on a plan for embedding the principles through ongoing workforce development. Long-term matching of children to carers remains ongoing and the Permanence
Strategy Group is overseeing all aspects of Permanence. Adoption work continues to progress with 21 children adopted so far this year despite delays in court due to
Covid 19. SGO policy has now been agreed by Cabinet.
Review and embed the functions of the Post Order & Permanence Team to achieve success for
31 October 2020

75%
children living with their family in the community
The post order and permanence team has been re-developed with a new service specification which has been agreed by SLT. In addition we have appointed an Interim
Practice Manager to develop the team in line with the specification and develop pathways into and out of the service. A dashboard of key data required for the team is
being developed to ensure we can monitor progress against key indicators.
CS2008.D

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 7 Of 8

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2020-21
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

CS2009 Children’s Services lead proactive relational practice within partnership arrangements

31 March 2021



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2009.A

Revise and review the Rochdale Safeguarding Children Partnership infrastructure in order to
embed relational practice across the partnership

31 December 2020



%Complete

56%

% Complete
50%

The process to move to more relational case conferences has been commenced. The IROs have now held 2 development days and more are planned in January 2021.
There is a full action plan being presented to SLT in January 2021 and a variety of planning meetings and discussions are taking place with a plan to move to the full new
system in April 2021. The required steps to introduce this new system has been agreed and is being implemented throughout January 2021.

Page 48

CS2009.B

Implement a Contextual Safeguarding approach to understand and respond to young people’s
experiences of significant harm beyond their families

31 March 2021



60%

The neighbourhood assessment is underway, with 3 task and finish groups held with a variety of partner agencies. Findings from surveys, reviews of CSC, educational data
for the families in that area etc. are currently being collated. This will be brought together in January 2021 to look at themes and patterns, followed by considered of
actions required to address these. There has been one meeting held to start the analysis of forms to consider how they include factors relating to context and extra
familial harm. A review meeting is scheduled for January 2021 where actions will then be agreed. Area in Heywood identified, multi-agency meetings have taken place
and everyone has been tasked with roles. Neighbourhood assessment is now underway with a specific area – 3 working groups are in place to look at different sections –
further meeting to take place in January to analyse the information gathered.
CS2009.C

Support Adult Services to implement a transitional safeguarding response, providing support and
safeguarding beyond 18 years

Initial meeting in place for January to embed transitional safeguarding across children’s and adults services.

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 8 Of 8

31 March 2021



60%

Public Health and Wellbeing Directorate Plan 2020-21
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

% Complete

PH2001 Undertake a review of public health in the context of the new system architecture

31 March 2021



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

PH2001.A

Define where and how the service needs to connect to the wider system to influence local policy
and decision making

30 September 2020



0%

31 March 2021



50%

50%

% Complete

As Q1 and Q2 deferred as team now diverted to Covid-19 and outbreak response.
PH2001.B

Develop collaborative leadership at locality level with a key focus on improving population health
through delivery of the locality plan

Collaborative leadership continues to be demonstrated across public health, adult care and neighbourhoods through the neighbourhood prevention review.

Page 49

Define and agree the phased approach to aligning public health commissioning and contracts for
place within the LCO to ensure great integration

31 March 2021



100%

PH2002 Development of an Integrated Intelligence Network, bringing together health and social
intelligence across commissioners and providers

31 March 2021



18%

Ref.

Due

Status

PH2001.C

Commissioning intentions were issued and approved in Q3 by ICB.

Name

% Complete

Describe structure, purpose and function of the intelligence network, signed off by partners across
30 June 2020

the system
Work has been delayed due to the response to Covid-19. We have recently recruited and redeployed additional resource, so it is hoped this will begin in Q4
PH2002.A

PH2002.B

Bring together network, agree ways of working and developing work plan aligned with priorities

30 September 2020



0%

50%

Work has been delayed due to the response to Covid-19. A network approach has been undertaken to support COVID intelligence, however, this needs further work to
develop from a non-COVID perspective

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 1 Of 6

Public Health and Wellbeing Directorate Plan 2020-21
Action Plan

PH2002.C

Due Date

Begin working against work plan, completing at least one piece of joint working

31 January 2021

Status



% Complete

25%

Joint working has taken place to support the COVID work, however, work still needs to be undertaken to bring together a network more formally and a work plan to
support that.
PH2002.D

Reflect on processes, refine approaches, share learning

31 March 2021



0%

31 March 2021



17%

Work will follow the formation of the network and the work programme.

PH2003 Development of an Environmental Sustainability and Public Health Plan to agree and deliver
Public Health priorities and actions around the sustainable development goals

Page 50

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

PH2003.A

Produce an Environmental Sustainability and Public Health Plan

30 June 2020



% Complete
70%

No further action undertaken in the last quarter due to Covid19 work priorities, but plan to liaise with council and CCG colleagues in Q4 to progress the work further.
PH2003.B

Agree priorities and joint actions that align with Council’s climate change strategy and CCG’s
actions around sustainability

30 September 2020



0%

31 December 2020



0%

31 March 2021



0%

Work/update has been delayed due to the response to Covid-19 and will be reviewed in Q4 for actions.
PH2003.C

Propose developing a steering group to monitor progress on agreed actions

Work/update has been delayed due to the response to Covid-19 and will be reviewed in Q4 for actions.
PH2003.D

Embed sustainability actions in the Public Health Business Plan

Work/update has been delayed due to the response to Covid-19 and will be reviewed in Q4 for actions.

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 2 Of 6

Public Health and Wellbeing Directorate Plan 2020-21
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

PH2004 Implement the new tiered delivery model tackling tobacco addiction with a focus on reaching
priority groups who have the highest smoking prevalence

31 March 2021



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

PH2004.A

Establish and communicate the pharmacy tier 2 offer and pathway through to the specialist
service

31 December 2020



% Complete

66%

% Complete
100%

The pharmacy tier 2 offer is now rolled out across 10 pharmacies working closely with the specialist service to offer the appropriate level of support to meet resident’s
needs.
Agree the priority groups and planned approach with the provider – needs led approach to
identify smokers considering the impact of COVID-19 and those who often experience the greatest
health inequalities

31 December 2020



100%

31 March 2021



0%

PH2005 Lead on the development and implementation of a system wide prevention strategy

31 March 2021



68%

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

PH2005.A

Agree the narrative, scope and outputs with key stakeholders across the system recognising the
impact and learning of COVID-19 on our prevention priorities

31 December 2020



PH2004.B

Priority groups and refreshed smoking pathway in place.

Page 51

PH2004.C

Clear recording and reporting to evidence impact and any changes required to strengthen the
model

Work not due.

% Complete
75%

Scope has been confirmed and updates have been taken to leadership. Work will continue in Q4 with the majority of system change being implemented in 21/22.
PH2005.B

Establish the project team and governance structure

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

31 December 2020

Page 3 Of 6



100%

Public Health and Wellbeing Directorate Plan 2020-21
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

% Complete

Complete – project team and structure established and governance is routed through leadership.
PH2005.C

Develop system wide procurement/development plans including the 2020/21 public health
prevention commission and options specific to the complex/ tertiary offer

31 March 2021



100%

Commissioning intentions report relating to Health Improvement service is due to go to January ICB. Procurement will now take place in 21/22. Arrangements for
complex adults services have been extended to allow for further development during 21/22
31 March 2021



0%

PH2006 Maximise the workplace health setting approach to reach and improve the wellbeing of our
health and care workforces

31 March 2021



12%

Ref.

Due

Status

31 December 2020



25%

31 March 2021



0%

PH2007 Recommission the Sexual Health Service to ensure improved access to services and alignment to
GM vision

31 March 2021



57%

Ref.

Due

Status

PH2005.D

Assess progress, achievements and agree next steps

An update will be provided in Q4.

Page 52

PH2006.A

Name
Finalise the refreshed Rochdale Borough Workplace Strategy and implementation plan identifying
the targeted workforces (including substance misuse service, mental health service, Rochdale
Infirmary Staff and care homes)

% Complete

Work/update has been delayed due to the response to Covid-19 and will begin in Q4
PH2006.B

Implement the workplace health and care plan with regular progress reports to the public health
team and Strategic Place Board

Work/update has been delayed due to the response to Covid-19 and will begin in Q4

Name

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 4 Of 6

% Complete

Public Health and Wellbeing Directorate Plan 2020-21
Action Plan

PH2007.A

Due Date

Undertake a Health Needs Assessment including consultation across the NES

Status

% Complete

31 January 2021



100%

31 March 2021



100%

Needs assessment is complete.
PH2007.B

Hold a market engagement event for providers to engage in a conversation with providers of
sexual and reproductive health services around the future landscape

A market engagement event has taken place.
Develop service specification with developmental requirements clearly outlined; consider learning
31 October 2020

30%
from Covid-19
The risk of going out to procurement whilst still in a global pandemic is currently being considered. Concerns have been raised as to whether NHS organisations will be in
a position to bid for tenders given the current pressures and this could result in an uncompetitive/bias market. As this is a tri borough contract it is being discussed with
our partners – recommendations will be presented to ICB.
PH2007.C

30 November 2020



0%

PH2008 Provide public health leadership for managing the Covid-19 outbreak and health protection
priorities

31 March 2021



68%

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

PH2008.A

Manage the prevention and outbreak management plan for at a local level

31 March 2021



75%

31 March 2021



100%

PH2007.D

Procure agreed service specification and award contract

Page 53

Awaiting the outcome of whether to recommission as outlined above.

% Complete

We are working to the COVID19 Outbreak Plan and have a COVID management plan that is updated weekly.
PH2008.B

Provide community infection control advice and guidance across the system

The work around infection control continues to be delivered via our duty desk. IPC advice is provided to various complex settings across the borough as a part of our Tier
1 Contact Tracing work.
PH2008.C

Lead the development of the local response for Test, Track and Trace

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 5 Of 6

31 March 2021



50%

Public Health and Wellbeing Directorate Plan 2020-21
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

% Complete

The three fixed LTS sites are running efficiently and have capacity required across Rochdale for PCR testing for those with symptoms.
Maintain an infection control and outbreak and incident response for other issues Maintain
31 March 2021

50%
assurance on good immunisation and screening programme uptake
The Covid -19 vaccination programme has been mobilised. NHSE leads the national programme and has commissioned a number of NHS providers to deliver the
programme. Public health has worked with stakeholders from across the local system to coordinate and support the programme. This includes work on supporting
operational standards and delivery, prioritisation, assurance processes, intelligence, communications and community engagement.
PH2008.D

31 March 2021



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

Understand the level of investment into the voluntary sector from RBC & CCG

31 March 2021



50%

31 October 2020



0%

Page 54

PH2009 Further develop the next phase of voluntary sector infrastructure support

PH2009.A

56%

% Complete

Financial mapping still underway. No findings reported yet – due by Feb 21.
PH2009.B

Work with Action Together to implement the phase 2 prevention offer through ‘test and learn’
pilot

Planned pilot delayed by COVID. Not likely to occur this year. Action Together are focusing efforts on assisting with the COVID response and distributing grant funds to
the VCSE sector and residents i.e. food solutions network, winter grant, community response fund.
PH2009.C

Upscaling of voluntary sector element of the whole system prevention offer across all 6
neighbourhoods

31 March 2021



75%

The re-profiling of timescales has meant that the upscaling aim linked to the prevention review is likely to slip into next year. However a large proportion of the COVID
related funding we are receiving is being channelled through and to the CVS sector in the borough.
PH2009.D

Work with action together to create a two year plan for 20/21-22 to ensure clear strategy for
growth

31 March 2021



100%

ICB have agreed a two year extension to the Action Together contract which has been formally issued. The service will be heavily involved in developments going
forward and are integral in the COVID response.

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 6 Of 6

Agenda Item 8

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 55

